ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 3, 2002
3:30 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lisa Miurkowski, Chair
Representative Andrew Hal cro, Vice Chair
Representati ve Kevin Meyer
Representative Pete Kott

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative Joe Hayes

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representative WlliamK. (Bill) WIIlians
MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 496

"An Act providing that a utility or electric operating entity
owned and operated by a political subdivision of the state
conpeting directly with a telecomunications wutility 1is not
subject to the Alaska Public Uilities Regulatory Act."

- MOVED CSHB 496(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 447
"An Act relating to the interest rates that may be charged on
| oans by the Commercial Fishing and Agricul ture Bank."

- MOVED HB 447 OUJT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 429

"An Act relating to certain licenses for the sale of tobacco
products; relating to tobacco taxes and sales and cigarette tax
st anps; relating to provisions nmaking certain cigarettes
contraband and subject to seizure and forfeiture; relating to
certain crimes, penalties, and interest concerning tobacco taxes
and sales; relating to notification regarding a cigarette

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- April 3, 2002



manuf acturer's nonconpliance with the tobacco product Master
Settlenment Agreenent or related statutory provisions and to
confiscation of the affected cigarettes; and providing for an
effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 496

SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C UTI LI TI ES EXEMPT FROM REGULATI ON
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE('S) W LLI ANV

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 19/ 02 2321 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 19/ 02 2321 (H L&C

04/ 03/ 02 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 447
SHORT TI TLE: COM FI SH & AGRI CULTURE BANK | NTEREST RATE
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) MULDER

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 19/ 02 2309 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 19/ 02 2309 (H L&C

04/ 03/ 02 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 429

SHORT TI TLE: TOBACCO TAXATI ON; LI CENSI NG
SPONSOR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/ 15/ 02 2282 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 15/ 02 2282 (H L&C, JUD, FIN

02/ 15/ 02 2282 (H FN1: (REV)

02/ 15/ 02 2282 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

02/ 15/ 02 2282 (H REFERRED TO LABOR & COVMERCE

04/ 03/ 02 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER
RANDY RUARO, St aff

to Representative WlliamK (Bill) WIIlians
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- April 3, 2002



Capi tol Building, Room 515

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 496 on behal f of
Representative WIIlianms, sponsor.

JI M VOETBERG, Assistant Gty Manager

City of Ketchikan

Assi st ant General Manager

Ket chi kan Public Uilities (KPU)

334 Front Street

Ket chi kan, Al aska 99901

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 496, saying it
woul d provide a level playing field.

HEATHER GRAHAM

City of Ketchikan

334 Front Street

Ket chi kan, Al aska 99901

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 496, saying it would take
sone tinme for a fully rate-regulated utility to set rates.

M CHAEL GARRETT, President

AP&T Wrel ess

4300 B Street, Suite 303

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 496.

REED STOOPS, Lobbyi st

for General Conmunications |Incorporated (GCl)
240 Main Street, Nunmber 600

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 496.

DALE ANDERSON, St aff

to Representative Eldon Ml der

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Buil di ng, Room 507

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 447 on behal f of
Represent ati ve Mul der, sponsor.

ED CRANE, President

Commerci al Fishing and Agricul ture Bank (CFAB)

2550 Denali Street, Nunmber 1201

Anchor age, Al aska 99507

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 497 and gave
specific information on the workings of CFAB.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- April 3, 2002



NEI L SLOTNI CK, Deputy Conm ssi oner

Depart ment of Revenue

PO Box 110405

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0405

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 429 on behalf of the
Departnent of Revenue.

JOHANNA BALES, Auditor

Departnent of Revenue

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 550

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the departnent on HB
429, as an expert on tobacco tax.

M KE ELERDI NG, Presi dent

Nort hern Sal es Conmpany of Al aska

PO Box 8112

Ket chi kan, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified against HB 429 and gave specific
suggestion for stanping.

MARK JCOHNSQN, Chi ef

Community Health & Energency Medical Services

Di vi sion of Public Health

Departnent of Health & Social Services

PO Box 110616

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0616

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 429, saying it
m ght prevent youths from snoki ng.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-48, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR LISA MJRKOMSKI called the House Labor and Commerce
Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 3:30 p.m Menber s
present at the call to order were Representatives Hayes,
Crawford, Halcro, and Mirkowski. Represent ati ves Rokeber g,
Kott, and Meyer arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 496- PUBLI C UTI LI TI ES EXEMPT FROM REGULATI ON

CHAI R MURKOWBKI announced the first matter before the commttee,
HOUSE BILL NO. 496, "An Act providing that a utility or electric
operating entity owned and operated by a political subdivision

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- April 3, 2002



of the state <conpeting directly wth a telecomunications
utility is not subject to the Alaska Public Utilities Regulatory
Act . "

Number 0061

RANDY RUARO, Staff to Representative Wlliam K (Bill) WIIians,
Al aska State Legislature, presented HB 496 on behalf of

Representative WIIlians, sponsor. He told nenbers HB 496 is
about fairness, and he characterized the present statute as
unfair as witten. The current statute would allow an

unregul ated or partially rate-regulated utility to conpete wth
a municipal utility and cause the nunicipal utility to becone
fully rate-regulated by the Regulatory Conm ssion of Alaska
(RCA); M. Ruaro called the resulting situation unbal anced. He
mentioned the bill's zero fiscal note. He also reported that
the RCA had submitted a letter saying it didn't oppose the bil
and that the issue is one to be decided |egislatively.

MR. RUARO drew attention to the sponsor's proposed Amendnent 1,
whi ch read [original punctuation provided]:

Page 2, Line 3
Del ete: "conpany"
Insert: "operating entity”

This is a technical change to conform the term nol ogy

used in the legislation on page 2, line 3 to the
termnology in the existing statute on page 1, line 8.
Number 0220

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked if there were situations in other areas of
the state simlar to the one in Ketchikan.

MR. RUARO said he wasn't aware of any simlar situations, but
t he | anguage woul d cover future municipal utilities.

Number 0271

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked if the bill could be tightened to
avoid giving nmunicipal wutilities blanket inmunities against
regul ated conpetition

MR. RUARO pointed out that a municipal utility is subject to its

own city code and to oversight regulation on rates through the
municipality, city council, and utility board. I munity is not

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- April 3, 2002



preserved if the conpeting entity is also fully regul ated. He
said the bill would keep things on a "level playing field." The
muni cipal utility would beconme fully rate-regulated only when it
was subjected to conpetition that was fully rate-regulated as
wel | .

Nunmber 0406

CHAI R MJURKOWSKI surm sed that [paragraph] (2) would provide for
a municipally owned utility to be regulated if the conpeting
utility entering the market al so were rate-regul at ed.

MR. RUARO added "fully rate-regulated” to Chair Mirkowski's
i nference and then said she was correct.

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked if there is a distinction between "fully"
and "less-than-full."

MR. RUARO pointed out a spectrum of regulation levels from
unregulated to fully rate-regul ated. Fully rate-regulated is
what a utility would beconme w thout the |egislation.

Number 0523

JIM VOETBERG Assistant City Mnager, City of Ketchikan;
Assi stant General Manager, Ketchikan Public Wilities (KPU)

testified before the commttee. He proclainmed his support for
HB 496. M. Voetberg told the conmittee that the City of
Ketchikan owns and operates several utilities including
t el econmuni cations, electric, water, wastewater collection and
treatnent, and solid [waste] <collection and disposal. The

| egislation is inportant to Ketchi kan because it allows the city
to continue operating in a simlar manner to what it has for
over 50 years. It also provides local |eaders with an inportant
tool for econom c devel opnent of the community.

MR. VOETBERG war ned that should the city becone regul ated under
the RCA, the cost to ratepayers would be an estimted $700, 000
annually. This cost does not include a rate study that could be
as much as $250,000 for each wutility division. He gave a
breakdown of what mght contribute to the rate-study cost. M.
said this isn't the time to increase costs to residents and
busi nesses, given the economi c situation of the city.

MR. VOETBERG identified AP&T [ Al aska Power & Tel ephone Conpany]

as the one phone conpany that had opposed the |egislation. He
said the city has listened to the conpany's argunents and

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- April 3, 2002



di sagrees with sone of its conclusions. He gave the exanple of
a procedure whereby a utility can seek waivers from regulatory
oversight by the RCA However, the procedure can be very tine-
consum ng and expensive, particularly when a conpany opposes the
wai ver . He said AP&T had made it known that a waiver for KPU
woul d be opposed; the costs of this would be passed on to
rat epayers. He noted that AP&T also had suggested [HB 496] is
special legislation, but he said the Gty of Ketchikan doesn't
find "creating a |level playing field" is special |egislation.

Number 0691

MR. VOETBERG addressed March 5, 2002, correspondence wth RCA
chai rperson Nan Thonpson, in which M. Thonpson said the RCA
doesn't support or oppose the legislation, which defers the
policy issues to [the |egislature].

MR. VOETBERG offered that the Cty of Ketchikan wants to |evel
the playing field with [HB 496]. He gave the exanple of a
conpany like GCI [CGeneral Communications |ncorporated] being
lightly regulated, while [KPU would be fully rate-regul ated.
He told the —conmittee the legislation doesn't stifle
conpetition; it only nmekes it occur on an even basis. He
stressed the inportance of the "relatively small change" to AS
42.05.711(b)(2) to the community of Ketchikan.

Number 0821

CHAIR MURKOWBKI surmsed that KPU is a municipally regulated
utility and not subject to the RCA She asked, if a wreless
conpany were to cone in, whether KPU would be fully [rate]-
regul ated. She asked the difference between fully regul ated and
lightly regul ated. She said currently wreless conpanies are
"popping up all over."

Number 0905

MR. VCOCETBERG replied that "fully rate-regulate" refers to a
situation in which the [RCA] will require a rate study. The
costs charged to customers would have to be justified by the
study, and the RCA would ensure that the costs and charges are
bal anced. He said "lightly rate-regulated” is a situation
wherein an entity doesn't have to undergo the process, and rates
can be set at whatever rates that entity desires. M. Voetberg
explained that whereas the fully rate-regulated entity 1is
required to go through a long process to determne its rates, a

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- April 3, 2002



lightly regul ated conpetitor can quickly undercut those rates by
smal | margi ns and thereby pick up custoners.

Number 0966
CHAI R MURKOASKI asked how AP&T is regul ated, for exanple.

MR. VOETBERG answered that he isn't aware of how the conpany is
regul ated, but it isn't fully rate-regul ated.

Number 0998

HEATHER GRAHAM City of Ketchikan, offered that sonetinmes it
takes longer than several nonths for a conpany that is fully
rate-regulated to change its rates, and it can be a |ot |onger
t han that.

Nunber 1040

M CHAEL GARRETT, Presi dent, AP&T  Wrel ess, testified via
t el econf erence. He told the commttee his organi zati on opposes
HB 496 because it ~could encourage the city to subsidize
conpetitive businesses it owns wth nonopolized services it

provides in other utilities. He said it renoves all independent
oversight. The cities that could be affected by the new change
"have an admnistrative solution.” He called the bill "specia

| egi sl ation” to support one group.

MR. GARRETT told nenbers that existing |aw gives the [RCA] the
ability to waive the regulatory requirenent of the city if it

finds that doing so is [in the] public interest. He said the
proposed changes renove the burden of proof from a city that a
wai ver [must be] in the public interest. He characterized the

RCA as the best qualified to make deci sions on such matters.
Number 1149

MR. GARRETT pointed out that even the [federal] Securities and
Exchange Commi ssion (SEC), in its Teleconmunications Act of
1996, identified that "conpetitive services shoul d not
subsi di zed by [nonconpetitive] services."™ The SEC enpowers the
state to make sure that "accounting or other neasures” are in
pl ace; he said the RCA is that body for Al aska. The proposed
changes would take away that authority from RCA He posited
that the changes in the law could be considered contrary to the
Tel econmuni cati ons Act of 1996.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- April 3, 2002



Nunber 1177

MR. GARRETT referred to section 254(k) of the foregoing Act. He
said current [state law] is consistent with the federal |aw, but
the language in HB 496 wouldn't be. He said the bill is a
result of his conpany's attenpt to provide conpetitive services
i n Ketchi kan. M. Garrett said AP&T wouldn't have a problem
with [KPU s] remaining unregulated if RCA found that to be in
the public interest. If "the city" were to file for a waiver
with the SEC, AP& would ask to nmake coments on the
applications, "but that would be an issue between the city and
the RCA, not AP&T," he told nenbers.

Nunber 1262

MR. GARRETT referred to previous statenents that the city would
be "regul ated" and AP&T "lightly regulated.” He said AP&T is a
famly of conpani es t hat have bot h conpetitive and
nonconpetitive services; all of their nonconpetitive services

are reqgqulated by the State of Al aska. He said if KPU faced
regulation, it would be in the sane position as AP&T. He asked
several questions based on different scenarios that he said
could be created by the bill

MR. GARRETT conceded there was a risk the RCA m ght not approve
a waiver if the city filed for one. He said the RCA would have

to justify that decision. He clainmed that this would |eave no
i ndependent organization - other than the utility - to |ook at
the facts.

Nunmber 1364

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked M. Garrett how long the waiver process
t akes.

MR. GARRETT answered that he didn't know. He said he wasn't
sure if RCA had a set a tineline.

CHAIR  MJRKOWSKI requested a comment about M. Garrett's
assertion that the bill could be used to maintain a nonopoly
situation in Ketchikan

Nunber 1436
MR. VOETBERG replied that KPU has been operating the utility for

over 50 years under the control of the city council. Section
254(k) of the federal regulations prohibits cross-subsidization.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- April 3, 2002



He told the commttee that if there is a concern, any conpany
can go to the Federal Comrunications Comm ssion (FCC) and file a
conpl ai nt . M. Voetberg said the proposed change in the state
statute has nothing to do with section 254(k) of the federa
regul ati on.

Nunber 1490

M5. CGRAHAM agreed with M. Voetberg, saying federal |aw bars
cross-subsi di es between conpetitive and nonconpetitive services;
that bar renmuins, regardless of what the Alaska State
Legi sl ature does.

CHAIR MJRKOWBKI asked if she was correct in assumng M.
Voetberg's and Ms. Grahanis testinonies were claimng that there
is a process in place through nunicipal regulations that wll
prevent rates fromgoing "willy-nilly or unchecked."

MR VCETBERG and Ms. GRAHAM concurr ed.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked if Ketchi kan had considered a waiver.
MR. VOETBERG said it had not.

Nunber 1553

CHAI R MJRKOWBKI asked M. Voetberg what he foresaw procedurally
if a waiver were requested.

MR. VOETBERG estimated it would take several nonths. There
would be a "back and forth" of filings in the case of an
opposi tion. He said the [RCA] is very busy, and decisions can
take one to two years.

Nunmber 1596

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO suggested there needs to be a nore
bal anced way to tie the locally owned utility's exenption to the
| evel of exenption that a new entrant into the market enjoys
The concern is that if one is lightly regul ated, there should be
consideration of adjusting the exenption to what type of
conpetition cones in. Representative Halcro expressed his
concern that if a blanket grant of imunity is bestowed upon a
locally owned utility that is unregulated by the RCA and a new
entrant to the market that is regulated wants to enter, a
conpetitor mght be bogged down in rate-filing requirenents and
ot her regul ati ons.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- April 3, 2002



Number 1677

CHAI R MURKOWBKI pointed out that the only way it would equalize
itself is if a fully regulated utility were to enter the market;
then the two would be put on par. She asked if Representative
Hal cro's concern [arises] if KPU, for exanple, were unregul ated
and the entrant were regul at ed.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said he was trying to think of how the
playing field could be kept |evel.

CHAIR MJURKOASKI offered that it would be quite confusing if
several entrants cane into the market at six-nonth intervals at
different | evels of regulation.

Number 1733

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked how it would pertain to cooperatives.
He gave exanpl es from Anchor age.

CHAI R MURKOABKI said she wasn't sure it would apply because [the
exanpl es] weren't nunicipally owed public utilities.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said they are different. He stated his
belief that GO and Al aska Comrunications Systens (ACS) are
regulated utilities in the state, and that if they were to enter
the Ketchi kan market and conpete with the local utility, they
woul d be regul ated and the Ketchikan utility would not be, under

[HB 496]. He expressed doubt that GC or ACS would readily
accept the "lightly regul ated” noni ker.
Number 1789

CHAI R MURKOWBKI said she didn't know where everybody fit in that
lightly-versus-fully-regulated spectrum including GCI and ACS.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked if anyone available from the RCA
coul d assist the commttee in understanding the issue.

Number 1814

REED STOOPS, Lobbyist for General Communications |Incorporated
(GCl), testified before the commttee. He told the commttee
&Cl wasn't taking a position on the bill, but said he would Iike
to explain the status of the regulations on ACS and GCl. | f
Ketchikan didn't get the legislation and would be regul ated by

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- April 3, 2002



the RCA it would be regulated as a nonopoly in the sane way
that the Anchorage Telephone Uility (ATU) was regulated when
GCl began to conpete [with ATU].

MR, STOOPS said the reason for a different set of regulations
for a nmonopoly than for a conpetitor is that a conpetitor cones
in with no protection. The in situ utility's urge to conpete
will likely force it to lower costs against the entrant and
shift the costs to those operations where the utility holds a
nonopol y. When a new conpetitor gets its foot in the door and

beconmes established, it loses its "lightly regul ated" status and
is placed on an equal footing with the its fully regulated
rival. M. Stoops characterized the premse of the federal

Tel econmuni cati ons Act as encouragi ng conpetition by allowing a
conpetitor to enter a market and then be subject to ful
regulation if it has gained enough of a market share and has
becone established.

Number 1933

MR, STOOPS, in response to Representative Hal cro, explained that
"lightly regul ated” conpanies are required to get a certificate
of authority, subject to consumer conplaints and a variety of
regul ations that fall short of rate regulations; there is no
need to regulate their rates because they are entering with no
mar ket share. He offered that the regulatory process nakes sure
the market conpetes fairly. M. Stoops said at a point at which
an entrant achieves a 40- to 50-percent market share, the RCA
m ght deregulate the fornmer nonopoly carrier. The RCA | ooks out
for the interests of the consumer, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO suggested that adoption of the |egislation
woul d continue all of KPUs protections as a nonopoly wthout
having to allow the potential for conpetition.

MR, STOOPS replied that the |legislation would entrust the
Ket chi kan nmunici pal government with the same function as the
RCA. He posited that [AP&T] would be faced with the choice of
having the RCA be the judge or having the nunicipality that owns
the utility be the judge.

Number 2033

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG nentioned case |aw. He said the
"I ncunbent elect” would be in an unregulated situation "in this
case." He asked if there is automatic assertion of authority by

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- April 3, 2002



the RCA, even though there is no economc regulation to set
tariffs or terns of the transm ssion-line uses and so forth.

Number 2065

MR. STOOPS answered that wunder current law, all regulation is
municipal. |If AP&T came in [to the Ketchi kan market], KPU woul d
have to go under RCA regulation for the first tinme, and would
have to justify and nake filings regarding its rate structure in
the future. He pointed out that if the bill were passed, the
authority would remain with the Gty of Ketchikan. If AP&T were
concerned, it would have to appeal to the FCC and file a federal
action, rather than [appealing to] the RCA

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG surm sed, then, that [the Gty of
Ket chi kan] could keep any other entity from conpeting with it
unl ess an entrant wanted to install its own transm ssion grid.

MR. STOOPS responded that AP&T is thinking of providing wreless
service and would put in its own equipnment. He said there needs
to be sone oversight because the incunbent carrier has all the
busi ness. When people are being switched from one carrier to
anot her, there needs to be sonebody to make sure that happens or
to file a conplaint with, if it doesn't happen. M. Reed said
the key issue at hand is the question of who wll be the
reci pient of those conplaints when they inevitably happen. He
cited the RCA, the Cty of Ketchikan, and the FCC as possible
entities that could fulfill that adjudicative role. The policy
decision is the appropriate forum for resolving disputes that
woul d result froman entrant's offering conpetitive service.

Nunber 2141

CHAIR MJRKOMNSKI referred to Representative Halcro's earlier
suggestion about leveling the playing field; he said that wth
the prem se of the federal Teleconmunications Act [of 1996], it
makes no sense to "try to have everybody travel up at the sane
| evel . ™ [Uilities] in a nonopoly position are saddled with a
high level of regulation until another conpany can "even out”
the market shares and until positions change enough that there
is additional regulation oversight [for the new entrant].

Number 2176
MR, STOOPS said that situation already exists in the RCA process

whereby it orchestrates a bal ance. He said in the present case
[of KPU, a nmunicipal entity owns and regulates a utility. He

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- April 3, 2002



added that he couldn't think of a fair way to balance that
si tuation.

CHAI R MURKOWASKI remarked that the RCA has an overwhel m ng nunber
of cases in the area of telecomunications and cannot keep up
She said she'd like to know the RCA's perspective on the matter.

Nunmber 2285

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG referred to AS 42.05.221 and commented
"It seenms to ne that this is just economc regulation and there
is still some jurisdiction fromthe RCA or sone other matters."”

MR. VCETBERG responded that there nust still be a certificate of
public convenience for the serving area for the "rate-regul ation
portion."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG offered his opinion that if independent
conpetitors were to enter the market, they would be subject to
the sanme RCA restrictions and a sorting out of those issues that
were not economc- or tariff-related. He stated his assunption
that KPU is not entirely exenpt.

Number 2350

MR. VOETBERG nentioned the FCC and pointed out that KPU has a
rule exenption for its area; a conpetitor who wanted to conpete
using KPU s facilities would have to go to the RCA in order to
get the exenption |ifted. He said there is a process in place
for that.

TAPE 02-48, SIDE B
Nunmber 2356

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES noved to adopt Anendnent 1, which read
[original punctuation provided]:

Page 2, Line 3

Del ete: "conpany"”

Insert: "operating entity".
This is a technical change to conform the term nol ogy
used in the legislation on page 2, line 3 to the
termnology in the existing statute on page 1, line 8.

There bei ng no objection, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- April 3, 2002



Nunber 2345

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to report HB 496, as anended, out
of committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB
496(L&C) was noved out of the House Labor and Comrerce Standing
Committee.

HB 447- COM FI SH & AGRI CULTURE BANK | NTEREST RATE

CHAI R MJURKOWSKI announced the next matter before the committee,
HOUSE BILL NO 447, "An Act relating to the interest rates that
may be charged on Jloans by the Commerci al Fishing and
Agricul ture Bank."

Number 2305

DALE ANDERSON, Staff to Representative El don Milder, Al aska
State Legislature, presented HB 447 on behalf of Representative
Mul der, sponsor. He explained that HB 447 addresses an inequity
in AS 45.45 that inhibits the ability of the Al aska Commerci al
Fishing and Agriculture Bank (CFAB) to serve its nandated

purpose of granting loans for snmall businesses and business
enterprises. Al aska has a usury law that limts the rates of
interest for certain types of loans - wusually snmall |oans. He

said AS 45.45.010 defines a small |oan as one under $25,000 and
est abli shes a maxi mum annual fixed-interest rate for such |oans
at 5 percent above the 12th Federal Reserve District discount
rate. In Al aska, conventional lending institutions, including
commercial banks and credit unions, are exenpt from state
statutes because of federal preenption provisions.

MR. ANDERSON told the commttee CFAB is the only Al askan
institutional |ender subject to this statute, because of its
organi zational structure as a cooperative bank. By law, it
cannot charge "too nuch interest.” Any interest collected in
excess of its needs is credited back to its nenber-borrowers.
He said the commercial fishing community had not generated

significant demand for small Jloans in the past, but since
limted entry fishing permts began being traded in the $20, 000-
t 0- $40, 000 range, there is a nmuch greater need for small | oans.

MR. ANDERSON told the conmttee that CFAB s [being subject] to
the existing statute, along with the period of the |owest market
rates in the Jlast 20 years, renders it wunable to nake
significant nunmbers of small |oans to Al askan residents. Thi s
opens the potential for a drastic denographic shift of permt

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- April 3, 2002



owner shi p. M. Anderson said the basic purpose of HB 447 is to
ensure that CFAB is able to continue serving its Al askan nenber-
borrowers in an efficient manner, and to equitably conpete wth
other lender institutions servicing this unique market.

Nunber 2219

MR. ANDERSON pointed out that the fiscal note from the director
of [the Division of Banking, Securities & Corporations] states
that there is no fiscal inpact on the operation of the division
[as a result of HB 447]. He said the legislation cones at the
request of both the nenbers of CFAB and the bank exam ners. The
examners filed a report that said the cap, if it remains, would
have an adverse effect on the institution.

Number 2177

ED CRANE, President, Comrercial Fishing and Agriculture Bank
(CFAB), testified before the commttee. He said the sponsor
statenment sunmmed up his sentinents well. He offered to answer
questi ons.

Nunber 2147

CHAI R MURKOWBKI requested confirmation that CFAB is the only
entity subject to the usury | aw.

MR. CRANE answered in the affirmative, adding that the usury |aw

goes back to before 1949. He said it has applied to many
institutions, but since the federal Financial Institutions
Reorgani zation Act of 1986, credit wunions and financial banks
"slid out from under" [the usury |law. He said since CFAB does
not fit any conventional definition of financial institutions,
it is [still] subject to the usury |aw. M. Crane said the
hi gher demand for small loans and the low |lending rates have

created a problemwi th the usury | aw for CFAB.
Number 2046

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked how CFAB's structure prevents it from
collecting too nuch interest. She underlined how the public
m ght perceive that CFAB' s exenption from the usury |aw would
allowit to charge very high rates.

MR. CRANE answered that CFAB is nandated by its statute to be

structured and operated as a cooperative. The custoners are the
owners. The only revenues cone from the custoners. In each

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- April 3, 2002



fiscal year, profits are shared with the cooperative's nenbers.
He said those profits - or margins - are prorated back to the
custoner. He gave exanples of simlar cooperatives.

Number 1945
CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked what CFAB's current interest rate is.

MR. CRANE replied that CFAB's rates range between 8.5 and 11
percent. The past 11 years have seen a patronage refund to
menbers in the range of 18 to 19 percent.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked what the [federal discount rate
for District 12] is.

MR. CRANE said it is 1.75 percent.
Nunmber 1907

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked how the "new mandate" to broaden
the scope of the bank is going.

MR. CRANE replied that it is going slowy because of recent
econoni c events. He expl ained that Representative Rokeberg was
referring to a nove by the bank to expand its business into the
real m of tourism and resource-based enterprises. He said CFAB
has been cautious and slow in its approach, but he estimted
that the bank has nmade $6 mllion in loans to tourism
enterprises.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if CFAB would be forced to charge
no nore than 6.5 percent on those | oans.

MR. CRANE clarified that the figure would be 6.75 percent. He
explained that part of the problemis that the statute mandates
a fixed rate of interest. He said federal tax |aw demands t hat
CFAB treat nenbers alike concerning patronage refunds.

Nunber 1822

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD expressed concerns he had heard from
constituents that the bill mght conpete with the Division of
| nvest nent s. He asked if there was anything to [the belief

that] CFAB and the Division of Investnments would be conpeting
for the sane market.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- April 3, 2002



MR. CRANE underlined that CFAB is a private |ending institution.
He said it lends noney borrowed from outside the state. There
are no public funds involved, nor is there any public risk. At
the end of the year, CFAB pays state corporate inconme tax. He
asked Representative Crawford if he was really concerned wth
CFAB conpeting with the D vision of |Investnents.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said he didn't know.
Nunber 1725

MR. CRANE said he didn't see any inpact on the D vision of
| nvestnent' s | oan program

Nunber 1664

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO noved to report HB 447 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 447 was noved out of House
Labor and Commerce Standing Committee.

HB 429- TOBACCO TAXATI ON; LI CENSI NG

Nunmber 1623

CHAI R MURKOWBKI announced the final matter before the commttee,
HOUSE BILL NO. 429, "An Act relating to certain licenses for the
sale of tobacco products; relating to tobacco taxes and sales
and cigarette tax stanps; relating to provisions making certain
cigarettes contraband and subject to seizure and forfeiture;
relating to certain crines, penalties, and interest concerning
tobacco taxes and sales; relating to notification regarding a
cigarette manufacturer's nonconpliance with the tobacco product
Master Settlenent Agreement or related statutory provisions and
to confiscation of the affected cigarettes; and providing for an
effective date.”

Nunber 1601

NEIL SLOTNI CK, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue,
testified before the comittee. He said HB 429 was not a
tobacco tax bill but a "tobacco tax stanp bill." Al aska has a

tobacco tax - one of the highest in the nation - but it is one
of only four states without the requirenment of a stanp to be
pl aced on [cigarettes] when the tax is paid. [M. Slotnick
passed around a pack of cigarettes from California as an exanple
of what a stanped pack of cigarettes |ooks |ike.]

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- April 3, 2002



Number 1564

MR SLOTNICK told the commttee the reason to have a tax stanp
is to ensure that state inspectors can determ ne whether a store
has paid the tax on cigarettes in stock. He said there have
been sonme successful enforcenment neasures regarding the tax
since it was inposed four years prior, but they are incredibly
time-consuming and difficult, and "require a little bit of
| uck." He said for the state to enforce the tax statute, the
stanp is needed. He also nentioned that there are sonme federa
benefits for the inposition of a tax stanp.

MR. SLOTNI CK posed the question, "Does Al aska have a snuggling
pr obl enf" He answered that there is snuggling, but the
magni tude isn't known. He gave exanples of how other states'
tax stanps have increased their tobacco tax revenues, and he
expressed the departnent's feeling that the stanp would do the
sanme for Alaska's revenues. It would provide easy detection and
a deterrent to untaxed tobacco in Al aska.

Number 1391

MR. SLOTNI CK addressed the fiscal note. The departnent is
requesting two positions: an administrative position to sell
the stanps, and an enforcenent position to take appropriate
action against entities that have violated the tax | aws. If it
is found that the departnment underestimated the |evel of
smuggl i ng, the departnent may request another position.

MR. SLOTNICK referred to a charts in nenbers' packets that
outline the decline in taxable cigarette sales since the
inmposition of the tax increase. He pointed out a 22-percent
decrease, part of which was the result of cessation [of tobacco
use] .

Nunber 1302

MR. SLOTNICK noted that there would be sone costs associated
with the stanp. A discount would give sonme nobney back to
distributors to offset sone of the costs they will be required
to bear. He said the stanp would also partially benefit
distributors, since smuggling and black-market sales would be
di scour aged. M. Slotnick pointed out that sone states give
distributors no discount, while others are nbre generous. He

said smaller distributors would be given a 2-percent discount

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- April 3, 2002



[under HB 429], and l|arger ones would receive a 1-percent
di scount .

Nunber 1229

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked why the stanp is to be placed only on
cigarettes and not all tobacco products.

Nunber 1202

JOHANNA BALES, Auditor, Departnent of Revenue, testified via
t el econf erence. She infornmed the commttee that the stanps are
much easier to apply to cigarette packages than to the packagi ng
used for snuff, cigars, and |eaf tobacco. She said she didn't
know of other states that stanp other tobacco products. There
has not been the same decline in the use of other tobacco
products and, therefore, the departnent does not have the sane
conpliance issues with them

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked how the dollar-per-pack tax applied
to the other fornms of tobacco.

MS. BALES said the tax went from 25 percent of the whol esal e
cost to 75 percent of the whol esal e cost.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked how [the stanp] works. He gave the
exanpl e of the Anchorage city tax on tobacco. He asked if the
stanp woul d show that the tax had been paid on the state tax, or
woul d show that the state and city tax had been paid.

MS. BALES answered that it would only indicate that the state
tax had been paid.

Nunmber 1098

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked if tobacco could be purchased over
the Internet.

MS. BALES replied that the state law levies a tax on inportation
for resale and personal consunption of cigarettes only. O her
t obacco products can be purchased through the nmail, and as |ong
as they are only for personal consunption, there is no tax.
REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked who woul d affix the stanp.

M5. BALES replied that the distributor is the one required to
attach the stanp.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- April 3, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked if the distributor would be given a
di scount to attach the stanps.

MS. BALES answered in the affirmati ve.
REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked why a discount should be given. He

reasoned that if it is the |aw, [ di stributors] shoul d
automatically do it.

Nunber 1048

MS. BALES told Representative Meyer that it would be up to the
| egi slature to decide that matter. She said the departnent has
proposed the discount because nobst states do. The average

di scount is 3 percent.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said he just wanted to zero out the fisca
not e, perhaps by passing the charges on to soneone el se.

Number 0994

CHAIR MJRKOWNSKI asked M. Slotnick why the stanp was not
proposed in 1997 when the tobacco-tax increase was passed.

MR. SLOTNI CK responded that he believed it was considered and
that he didn't know why the stanp was not adopted. He offered
that the tax was controversial enough that [legislators] didn't
want to inpede it with the stanp.

CHAIR MJURKOWBKI asked, in reference to Internet sales, what
constitutes personal consunption. She used an exanple of five
pallets of cigarettes in her garage for "personal use."

Number 0894

MR. SLOTNICK told the commttee that under the bill, being in
possessi on of unstanped cigarettes is not allowed.

M5. BALES pointed out the distinction that is nade is between
cigarettes brought into the state and other tobacco products.
No determination nust be nade regarding cigarettes for persona
use or resale, because any cigarettes inported into the state
nmust be taxed according to the | aw

CHAIR MJURKOWSKI asked how it would be known whether the
cigarettes were inported.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- April 3, 2002



M5. BALES said federal law would be called into play. She
referred to the Jenkins Act, which requires distributors to
report the sale of cigarettes to state departnents of revenue
when shi pping them across state lines. She then referred to the
Cgarette Contraband Tax Act, which says it is illegal to ship
via interstate commerce nore than 60,000 cigarettes to someone
unl i censed. The law only applies in states that require a tax
st anp. She said the Jenkins Act carries a msdeneanor penalty
for violation, and the Cigarette Contraband Tax Act carries a
felony penalty.

Number 0724

CHAIR MJRKOWSKI  nmentioned that the distributors would be
responsible for applying the stanps. She asked how many
distributors are in Al aska.

MS. BALES estimated 55 to 60 distributors.

CHAI R MJURKOWSKI asked if small distributors would be able to
contract the stanping out to sonme other entity to save on costs.

Nunmber 0665

M5. BALES replied that smaller distributors would be able to
contract that work out. There are different license types in
the state: distributors and direct-buying retailers. O the 55
distributors, 15 to 20 are in-state businesses; 4 of those are
| arge distributors, and the rest are direct-buying retailers.
Most of those conpanies buy their products from distributors in
the Lower 48 that are equipped to stanp in all the other states.
Ms. Bales said the large distributors she'd talked to had told
her they could stanp for the snmall er snoke shops in Al aska.

Nunmber 0548

M5. BALES, in reply to a question from Chair Mirkowski,
expl ained that the product would have to be stanped as soon as
the shipping containers were opened. Seal ed shipping containers
could remain unstanped. She characterized the system as simlar
to the one in existence. Under the bill, the stanps woul d have
to be purchased upfront so they would be available when the
product was unpacked.

Nunmber 0450

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- April 3, 2002



CHAIR MURKOWBKI raised a scenario involving Costco, with the
stanpi ng taking place outside of Al aska. She asked what would
happen if the stanped cigarettes were not selling in Al aska and
t he product becane stale on the shelf. Wat could the store do,
since the stanped cigarettes could not be shipped to another
state because of the Al aska stanmp?

M5. BALES answered that the bill would provide for a credit.
The product could be sold out of state if the other state's
stanp were placed on the product. She said the current |aw does
not allow the credit for selling out of state. Ms. Bales said
Costco had told her it wasn't sure if it would stanp within the
state or el sewhere.

Nunmber 0300

CHAIR MURKOABKI referred to page 7 and its nention of sale of
the stanps. She inquired about the inagined result behind
allowing the departnent to enter into agreenments with financial
institutions to permt the sale of stanps. Chair Mirkowski said
she thought this was to be run throughout the Departnent of
Revenue.

Nunmber 0268

M5. BALES responded that sonme states contract wth financial
institutions that sell all of their stanps. The departnent has
made a provision to do that if, at sone tine, it is a nore cost-
ef fective approach.

CHAIR MJRKOWNSKI invited M. Bales to deliver her prepared
testi nony.

Nunmber 0188

M5. BALES pointed out that the state has seen a 22-percent
decrease in taxable cigarettes [since the elevation of the
tobacco tax]. The decrease as a result of cessation [of tobacco
use] was projected to be about 13 percent. Ms. Bales referred
to a study conducted by the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services Study - "The Inpact of the 1997 Tobacco Tax Rate
I ncrease in Alaska" - that found its data was inconclusive. She
said there is no conclusive evidence that people have quit
snoking as a result of the tax increase, but there is evidence
of snuggli ng. She said the departnment had undertaken severa
i nvestigations of snuggling; she gave sone exanpl es.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- April 3, 2002



TAPE 02-49, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR MJRKOWNSKI asked if Metlakatla - the only recognized
reservation in the state - could ignore the tax stanp and becone
the "Mecca of cigarette sales.”

Nunmber 0168

M5. BALES said the departnent did not perceive a problem with
Met | akatla. Tobacco sellers in that conmunity are not required

to stanp. She said the comunity is allowed to purchase a
certain nunber of wuntaxed cigarettes based on a formula that
takes the comunity's population into account. Ms. Bales

pointed out that the community has agreed to tax any cigarettes
t hat exceed the annual all ocation.

Nunber 0215

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked how the tax applies to mlitary
bases.

M5. BALES indicated all of the product on mlitary bases nust be
sold at a price no less than 90 percent of the retail value of
that product off the base. In further response, she said the
bases are exenpt fromthe tax.

Number 0298

M KE ELERDING President, Northern Sales Conpany of Al aska
("Northern Sales"), testified via teleconference. He gave
background information on his conpany. In 2001, Northern Sal es

collected and paid $3,669,000 for the excise tax. He said his
war ehouses are presently holding $1.3 mllion [of inventory],
and the tax on that is $380,000 - 29 percent of the cost of
goods.

MR. ELERDI NG said Alaska has one of the highest state excise
taxes in the nation, and it is only one of six with a tax of $10

a carton or greater. He said the stated reason for the tax
increase was to discourage the habit of snoking cigarettes. In
fiscal year 1997, the state collected $15 nmillion in excise tax.

In fiscal year 2001, Al aska collected $41 mllion in excise tax.
He said the state has achieved its goal of decreasing the anount
of cigarettes consuned in Al aska.

Number 0465

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- April 3, 2002



MR. ELERDI NG said the rationale behind HB 429 is to discourage
bootl egging of cigarettes in the state. However, it places the
burden of tax collection and stanmping on the distributors. M.
Elerding said the logistics of supplying the conpany's
geographic locations would require four separate tax-stanping
operations; the costs generated by these redundancies would be
greater than the proposed discount from the state. The
conpany's profit margin is so snmall that it wouldn't be able to
operate as a result of the bill

MR. ELERDING told nenbers that if his conpany goes out of the

cigarette business, large out-of-state conpanies will fill its
ni che. He warned that this will result in a loss of jobs for
the state. He also said he believes the magjority of bootl eggi ng
is the result of Internet sales of tobacco products to

i ndi vidual s. Tax stanping would not inpact these sales.

Nunber 0768

CHAIR MJRKOWSKI noted that M. Elerding had raised an
interesting dilemm. Large distributing conpanies wll becone
nore successful at anortizing the tax costs because of their
| arge sales volune, while smaller Al askan conpanies will find it
harder and harder to do business. She raised the issue of
giving additional discounts to Al aska-based operations. She

asked M. Elerding if he had contenplated any solutions to those
types of problens.

Nunmber 0858

MR. ELERDI NG agreed with Chair Mirkowski's insight on the |arger
entities' being nore conpetitive because of their econom es of

scal e. He suggested the state could require stanping to take
place within Alaska's borders, and require that all cigarette
sales be nade in cash, "on the spot,” to help reduce risk

exposure when collecting the state excise tax.
Nunber 1102

MARK JOHNSON, Chief, Conmunity Health & Enmergency Medica
Services, Division of Public Health, Departnment of Health &

Soci al Services, testified before the commttee. He said the
department supports the intent of the bill; he noted that one of
its goals is to reduce tobacco products. He said studies show

youth to be nore price-sensitive, so |limting access to nontaxed
t obacco woul d hel p.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- April 3, 2002



Nunmber 1163

CHAI R MURKOWBKI stated her intent to hold the bill over in order
to further explore the issue with the Departnent of Revenue and
try to address the concerns of |ocal businesses.

Number 1203

M5. BALES expressed concern that many of the smaller snoke
shops' distributors exist outside of the state. She said M.
El erding's suggestion would hurt the smaller distributors. [ HB
429 was hel d over.]

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:30 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- April 3, 2002



